
ABABABAB    
JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL 
 

THURSDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2007 
TIME NOT SPECIFIED 
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Minutes of Joint Consultative Panel held on 25 October 2005. 
 

 

3. Car Allowances - Draft Policy 
 

1 - 10 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact  on  
as soon as possible. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

20 September 2007 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer(s): Richard Johnson, Business Transformation Team 

Jacquie McGeachie, Acting Head of Human Resources 

Tel. 777994 

Tel. 742030 

 

Draft Car Allowance Policy 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

 
FROM:  Director of Strategic Resources Deadline date:.n/a 

 
Joint Consultative Panel is requested to consider and make representations to Employment 
Committee on the following:- 
 
1.1. The draft car allowance policy attached at Annex A; 
 
1.2. Subject to agreement on recommendation 1.1 above, as part of the implementation process, 

all those employees who are currently designated as an ‘essential user’ to receive a 
transition payment referred to in 5.3 up to 30 June 2008 as way of a compensation buyout 
payment to take account of any transition issues that may arise for individual employees as a 
consequence of the implementation of this policy; 

 
1.3. That notice be given to all employees prior to 1 October 2007 to vary their existing terms and 

conditions of employment with effect from 1 January 2008 in relation to payment of car 
allowances; 

 
1.4. That during the notice period referred to in recommendation 1.3 and prior to the policy 

implementation date and in the future, managers should consult with their staff about the 
planning business journeys and in particular long distance journeys and that employees  
consult their managers to agree the most appropriate and cost effective mode of transport, it 
being the role of managers to manage their transport budget efficiently and apply a common 
sense business approach when agreeing the most appropriate mode of transport and 
authorising mileage claims.  

  

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to the Committee following a project carried out by the Business 
Transformation team which commenced in November 2006 into reducing the cost of 
business mileage accumulated by Council employees using their own vehicles for business 
purposes. . From that date a number of officers in the Business Transformation team have 
been responsible for this project and have engaged with the Trade Unions. The issue of car 
allowances was raised at the Joint Consultative Forum (JCF) on 8 January 2007 and a 
Rapid Action Team (RAT) was subsequently formed consisting of a project leader and trade 
union representatives.  The RAT was mandated by the JCF and tasked with resolving the 
issue.  However following a number of meetings with the Trade Unions, no agreement has 
been reached. 

 
1.2 Following a JCF held on the 10 August 2007, a new project manager was appointed and a 

meeting was held with a representative of the Trade Unions. Rapid progress was made and 
a joint management and trade union paper and new policy were drafted with the aim of 
presenting these to the JCF on 13 September 2007. However, the project manager was 

1



informed by the trade union representative on the 5 September 2007 that the Trade Union 
side indicated it could not go forward with what was being suggested.  As a consequence 
the proposed joint paper was submitted to the JCF meeting on the 13 September 2007 as a 
management side only paper and draft policy.  

 
1.3 Because of the timing of the JCF and the date by which this report had, under the Access 

to Information Rules to be sent to members, for consideration, this report has been written 
ahead of the JCF meeting on the 13 September 2007 and is therefore subject to the 
outcome of that meeting.  The JCP meeting will be updated by the management side on the 
outcome of the JCF meeting.  The Trade Union side may also wish to make 
representations to this JCP meeting. 

 
1.4 If agreement is reached at the JCF on 13 September 2007, Members will receive an update 

on the outcome.  If agreement should not be reached at the JCF meeting on 13 September, 
then the matter will need to be discussed at this Joint Consultative Panel on 20 September 
2007.  In the event of non agreement at JCF, it will be proposed by officers that Members 
agree to adjourn this Employment Committee to enable discussion at this JCP meeting and 
to reconvene this Employment Committee to determine the matter after JCP has debated 
the same. 

 
2. JCP 
 

2.1 This is a discussion and negotiation forum between Members of the Employment 
Committee and the Trade Union representatives.  It is not a decision making body.   

 
3. PROPOSED HUMAN RESOURCE POLICY 

 
3.1 The Trade Union side and Management side work to jointly agreed policies and procedures 

as part of the negotiation and discussion process affecting the terms and conditions of 
employment for employees. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 In addition to the above, discussions and negotiations with the recognised Trade Unions 

have also taken place outside of the JCF. 
 
5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES – THE EFFECT OF CHANGE TO THE POLICY 
 
5.1 The draft policy on car allowances at Annex A removes the distinction between essential 

and casual car users.  It is proposed by the new policy that employees will be reimbursed 
for business mileage they actually undertake when they use their own vehicle for business 
purposes, with the reimbursement rates set out in accordance with the Inland Revenue 
rules. 

 
5.2 For Members’ ease of reference, Annex A (draft Car Allowance Policy) contains details of 

the proposed car mileage rates.  Annex B, on the other hand, shows the current car 
mileage rates and lump sum under the existing policy. 

 
6.3 Members will note at Recommendation 1.2 that a transition payment for the period up to 30 

June 2008 is referred to as a compensation buy-out to current essential users.  That 
transition payment equates to a pro-rata amount of the annual lump sum. 

 
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1 The reasons behind the recommendations are:- 
 

• the draft policy removes the distinction between essential and casual car users and 
gives equity; 

2



• it supports the Council’s Travel Plan by encouraging Managers and employees to 
consider the most efficient, cost effective and appropriate mode of transport which 
has an impact on the environment; 

• it will provide the Council with savings. 
 
7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

7.1 Other options, such as higher car allowances and lower mileage rates were considered but 
rejected by the Trade Unions. 

 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Based on the car mileage claims submitted in 2006, and those employees classified as 

essential car users, there would be a saving in the region of £1,152,000. under the draft 
policy at Annex A. 

 
9.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
 Current Car Allowance scheme. 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft CarAllowancePolicyAnnexA0.doc 
 

Annex A 
 

Draft Car Allowance Policy 
 

1. Policy Statement 
 
1.1. The purpose of this policy is as a supplement to and in support of the 

Council’s Travel Plan by encouraging managers and employees to consider 
when planning journeys for business purposes the most efficient, cost 
effective and appropriate mode of transport that also takes into account the 
impact on the environment. The policy also brings equality to the issue of car 
allowances by removing the differential between ‘essential’ and ‘casual car’ 
users. This is achieved by reimbursing employees for the business mileage 
they actually undertake when they use their own vehicle for business 
purposes.  

 
1.2. The reimbursement rates are set in accordance with the Inland Revenue rules 

applicable from time to time and this policy replaces all others connected with 
the issue of car allowances.  

 
1.3. The mileage reimbursement rates set by the Inland Revenue applicable at this 

time are outlined in Section 2 below and have a statutory exemption from tax 
and are calculated to take account of the overall average running costs of 
each particular category of vehicle, in addition to whether or not an employee 
takes fellow employees as passengers in their own vehicle on business 
journeys. 

 
2. Car Allowance Rates 
 
2.1. The Inland Revenue ‘approved mileage allowance payments’ rates (effective 

as at 1 April 2007) are:  
 

Motor cars or vans:   
 
Each mile up to 10,000 business miles - 40 pence per mile 
Each mile over 10,000 business miles  - 25 pence per mile 

 
Motor cycles: No restriction - 24 pence per mile 
 
Cycles: No restriction - 20 pence per mile 
 
An employee who takes fellow employees as passengers in their own vehicle 
on journeys that are also for business purposes for them and there is no other 
alternative, will in addition be reimbursed at 5 pence per passenger per 
business mile. 
 

3. Scope of Policy 
 
3.1. This policy applies to all employees within Peterborough City Council. 

5



Draft CarAllowancePolicyAnnexA0.doc 
 

 
4. The Responsibilities of Managers and Employees 
 
4.1. When planning business journeys, particularly long distance journeys, 

employees must consult with their manager and agree the most appropriate 
and cost effective mode of transport. This therefore may be the use of public 
transport, the employee’s own vehicle, the use of a council vehicle or car 
rental.   

 
4.2. In support of 4.1, it is also the role of managers to manage their transport 

budget efficiently and apply a common sense approach when agreeing the 
most appropriate mode of transport and authorising mileage claims.  

 
4.3. To support managers and employees guidance notes are incorporated into 

the Council’s Travel and Subsidence policy and procedure. 
 
 

6



Draft CarallowancesAnnexA0410070.doc 
 

Annex A 
 

Draft Car Allowance Policy 
 

1. Policy Statement 
 
1.1. The purpose of this policy is as a supplement to and in support of the 

Council’s Travel Plan by encouraging managers and employees to consider 
when planning journeys for business purposes the most efficient, cost 
effective and appropriate mode of transport that also takes into account the 
impact on the environment. The policy also brings equality to the issue of car 
allowances by removing the differential between ‘essential’ and ‘casual car’ 
users. This is achieved by reimbursing employees for the business mileage 
they actually undertake when they use their own vehicle for business 
purposes.  

 
1.2. The reimbursement rates are set in accordance with the Inland Revenue rules 

applicable from time to time and this policy replaces all others connected with 
the issue of car allowances.  

 
1.3. The mileage reimbursement rates set by the Inland Revenue applicable at this 

time are outlined in Section 2 below and have a statutory exemption from tax 
and are calculated to take account of the overall average running costs of 
each particular category of vehicle, in addition to whether or not an employee 
takes fellow employees as passengers in their own vehicle on business 
journeys. 

 
2. Car Allowance Rates 
 
2.1. The Inland Revenue ‘approved mileage allowance payments’ rates (effective 

as at 1 April 2007) are:  
 

Motor cars or vans:   
 
Each mile up to 10,000 business miles - 40 pence per mile 
Each mile over 10,000 business miles  - 25 pence per mile 

 
Motor cycles: No restriction - 24 pence per mile 
 
Cycles: No restriction - 20 pence per mile 
 
An employee who takes fellow employees as passengers in their own vehicle 
on journeys that are also for business purposes for them and there is no other 
alternative, will in addition be reimbursed at 5 pence per passenger per 
business mile. 
 

3. Scope of Policy 
 
3.1. This policy applies to all employees within Peterborough City Council. 

7



Draft CarallowancesAnnexA0410070.doc 
 

 
4. The Responsibilities of Managers and Employees 
 
4.1. When planning business journeys, particularly long distance journeys, 

employees must consult with their manager and agree the most appropriate 
and cost effective mode of transport. This therefore may be the use of public 
transport, the employee’s own vehicle, the use of a council vehicle or car 
rental.   

 
4.2. In support of 4.1, it is also the role of managers to manage their transport 

budget efficiently and apply a common sense approach when agreeing the 
most appropriate mode of transport and authorising mileage claims.  

 
4.3. To support managers and employees guidance notes are incorporated into 

the Council’s Travel and Subsidence policy and procedure. 
 
 

8



Annex B 

 

 

Car Allowances with effect from 1 April 2007 under current policy 
 

 451 - 999cc 1000 - 1199cc 1200 - 1450cc 

Essential  Users    

Lump sum per annum £726 £819 £1,056 

per mile first 8,500 32.0p 34.6p 43.4p 

per mile after 8,500 12.1p 12.1p 14.4p 
    

Casual Users    

per mile first 8,500 40.5p 44.2p 55.8p 

per mile after 8,500 12.1p 12.1p 14.4p 

 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Car Allowances - Draft Policy
	Car Allowance Policy Annex A
	Car allowances  Annex A -  04.10.07
	Car Allowances Annex B


